FULTON FINANCIAL CORP Form DEF 14A April 04, 2016

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

-	ursuant to Section 14(a) of the Secu 934 (Amendment No.)	rities
Filed by the Regist Filed by a Party oth	rant [X] ner than the Registrant []	
Check the appropri	ate box:	
[] []	Preliminary Pro Confidential, f o	xy Statement or Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
[X]	Definitive Proxy	y Statement
[]	Definitive Addi	tional Materials
[]	Soliciting Mater	rial Pursuant to §240.14a-12
Fulton Financ	cial Corporation	
(Name of Regi	strant as Specified In Its Charter)	
	(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)
Payment of Filing l	Fee (Check the appropriate box):	
[X]	No fee required.	
[]	Fee computed on table below	v per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
	1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee i calculated and state how it was determined):
	4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
	5)	Total fee paid:
[]	Fee paid previously with pre	liminary materials.
[]		fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which reviously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or filing.

1)	Amount Previously Paid:
2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
3)	Filing Party:
4)	Date Filed:

Edgar Filing: FULTON FINANCIAL (CORP - Form	DEF	14A
----------------------------------	-------------	-----	-----

T			\sim	
Ta	ble	of	Con	tents

2016 Proxy Statement

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders Monday, May 16 at 10:00 a.m. Lancaster, PA

P.O. Box 4887 One Penn Square Lancaster, Pennsylvania 17604

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD MONDAY, MAY 16, 2016 AT 10:00 A.M.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FULTON FINANCIAL CORPORATION:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, pursuant to the call of its directors, the Annual Meeting of the shareholders of FULTON FINANCIAL CORPORATION (Fulton) will be held on Monday, May 16, 2016, at 10:00 a.m., at the Lancaster Marriott at Penn Square, 25 South Queen Street, Lancaster, Pennsylvania, for the purpose of considering and voting upon the following matters:

- 1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS. The election of eleven (11) director nominees to serve for one-year terms;
- 2. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PROPOSAL. A non-binding say on pay (Say-on-Pay) resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers:
- 3. RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR. The ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as Fulton s independent auditor for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016; and
- 4. OTHER BUSINESS. Such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting and any adjournments thereof. Only those shareholders of record at the close of business on February 29, 2016, shall be entitled to be given notice of, to attend and to vote at the meeting. Please take a moment now to cast your vote over the Internet or by telephone in accordance with the instructions set forth on the enclosed proxy card, or, alternatively, if you received paper copies of the Proxy Statement and proxy card, to complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope provided. Shareholders attending the Annual Meeting in person may vote in person, even if they have previously voted by proxy.

Voting via the Internet or by telephone is fast and convenient, and your vote is immediately tabulated and confirmed. Your Proxy is revocable and may be withdrawn at any time before it is voted at the meeting. You are cordially invited to attend the meeting. If you plan on attending, please RSVP that you will attend by returning the Annual Meeting Reservation Form enclosed or print and return the form posted at www.proxyvote.com.

A copy of Fulton s Annual Report on Form 10-K accompanies this Proxy Statement.

Sincerely, Daniel R. Stolzer Corporate Secretary

Enclosures April 4, 2016

PROXY STATEMENT

Dated and To Be Mailed on or about: April 4, 2016

P.O. Box 4887, One Penn Square Lancaster, Pennsylvania 17604 (717) 291-2411

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 16, 2016 AT 10:00 A.M.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
ANNUAL MEETING SUMMARY	1
GENERAL INFORMATION	2
Introduction	$\overline{\underline{2}}$
RSVP, Date, Time and Place of Meeting	2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6
Shareholders Entitled to Vote and Attend Meeting	$\overline{\underline{2}}$
Purpose of Meeting	$\overline{\underline{2}}$
Solicitation of Proxies	$\frac{\overline{3}}{3}$
Revocability and Voting of Proxies	$\frac{\overline{3}}{3}$
Voting Shares Held in Street Name	$\overline{4}$
Voting of Shares and Principal Holders Thereof	$\overline{4}$
Internet Availability of Proxy Materials	<u>5</u>
Recommendation of the Board of Directors	<u>5</u>
Shareholder Proposals	<u>5</u>
Contacting the Board of Directors	<u>6</u>
Code of Conduct	<u>6</u>
Corporate Governance Guidelines	<u>6</u>
SELECTION OF DIRECTORS	7
General Information	7
Majority Vote Standard	$\overline{7}$
Procedure for Shareholder Nominations	$\overline{7}$
Director Qualifications and Board Diversity	7 7 7 7 2 8
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Proposal One	9
General Information	9 2 2 2 2 2 2
2016 Director Nominees	9
Vote Required	9
Recommendation of the Board of Directors	9
Information about Nominees, Directors and Independence Standards	9
<u>Director Nominee Biographical Information</u>	<u>10</u>
Security Ownership of Directors, Nominees, Management and Certain Beneficial Owners	<u>16</u>
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	<u>18</u>
Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors	<u>18</u>
Human Resources Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	<u>18</u>
Other Board Committees	<u>18</u>
Board s Role in Risk Oversight	18 18 20 21
Lead Director and Fulton s Leadership Structure	<u>21</u>
Executive Sessions	$\overline{21}$

Table of Contents

Report of Audit Committee

Annual Meeting Attendance		<u>21</u>
Director Education and Board of Directors Development		<u>21</u>
<u>Legal Proceedings</u>		21 22 23 23 24 25
Related Person Transactions		<u>22</u>
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance		<u>23</u>
Board of Directors and Committee Evaluations		<u>23</u>
Compensation of Directors		<u>24</u>
<u>Director Compensation Table</u>		<u>25</u>
INFORMATION CONCERNING COMPENSATION		<u> 26</u>
Compensation Discussion and Analysis		<u> 26</u>
Section	Page	
A. Executive Summary	<u>26</u>	
B. Shareholder Say-on-Pay Proposal Historical Results	<u>28</u>	
C. Pay for Performance	<u>28</u>	
D. Compensation Philosophy	<u>29</u>	
E. HR Committee Membership and Role	28 29 30 30 31 31 32 32 38 39	
F. Role of Management	<u>30</u>	
G. Compensation Plan Risk Review	<u>31</u>	
H. Use of Consultants	<u>31</u>	
I. Use of Peer Groups	<u>32</u>	
J. Elements of Executive Compensation	<u>32</u>	
K. Employment Agreements	<u>38</u>	
L. Other Compensation Elements	<u>39</u>	
Human Resources Committee Report		41
Summary Compensation Table		42 45 46 48 48
Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table		<u>45</u>
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table		46
Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table		48 48
Pension Benefits Table		
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table Potential Payments Upon Termination and Golden Parachute Compensation Table		<u>49</u> 50
Potential Payments Opon Termination and Golden Parachute Compensation Table		<u>30</u>
NON BINDING CAN ON BAN DECOLUTION TO A BROOM THE COMBENCATION OF THE NAMED		
NON-BINDING SAY-ON-PAY RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE COMPENSATION OF THE NAMED		5 4
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS Proposal Two Recommendation of the Board of Directors		<u>54</u> 54
Recommendation of the Board of Directors		<u>34</u>
DEL ATTIONISHED NUTTU INDEDENDENT DUDI IS A COOLINGANTS		
RELATIONSHIP WITH INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS		<u>55</u>
RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR Proposal Three		<u>56</u>
Recommendation of the Board of Directors		<u>56</u>
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION		57 57 57 57
Annual Report on From 10-K		<u>57</u>
Householding of Proxy Materials		<u>57</u>
Sign Up for Electronic Delivery		<u>57</u>
OTHER MATTERS		<u>58</u>
EXHIBITS		

Exhibit A

ANNUAL MEETING SUMMARY

The annual meeting of the shareholders of Fulton (the Annual Meeting) for 2016 will be held on Monday, May 16, 2016, at 10:00 a.m., at the Lancaster Marriott at Penn Square, 25 South Queen Street, Lancaster, Pennsylvania. The Board of Directors has approved an agenda consisting of four items for the Annual Meeting, as described in the meeting notice and in more detail herein.

Proposal 1 (Page 9) Proposal 2 (Page 54) Proposal 3 (Page 56) The election of the The approval of the The ratification of the eleven (11) director non-binding Say-on-Pay appointment of KPMG nominees identified in resolution to approve the LLP as Fulton s this Proxy Statement. compensation of the independent auditor for named executive officers. the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote <u>FOR</u> the election of the eleven (11) director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement, <u>FOR</u> the approval of the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers and <u>FOR</u> the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as Fulton s independent auditor for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.

You can vote your	You can vote your	If you received a	You can vote in
shares via the Internet	shares by telephone	paper copy of the	person at the
by visiting	using your control	Proxy Statement,	Annual Meeting
www.proxyvote.com	number by calling	you can vote	with your Proxy
and entering your	1-800-690-6903.	your shares by	Card or legal
control number.		signing and	proxy if shares are
		returning your	held in street
		proxy card by	name. (See Voting
		mail.	Shares Held in
			Street Name on
			Page 4 for more
			information)

If you would like to save paper and reduce the costs incurred by Fulton in printing and mailing proxy materials, you can consent to receiving all future proxy statements, proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign up for electronic delivery, please go to www.proxyvote.com and have your proxy card and control number in hand when you access the website, then follow the instructions at www.proxyvote.com to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form. Follow the instructions for voting by Internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or access shareholder communications electronically in future years.

1

Table of Contents

GENERAL INFORMATION

Introduction

Fulton Financial Corporation, a Pennsylvania business corporation and registered financial holding company, was organized pursuant to a plan of reorganization adopted by Fulton Bank and implemented on June 30, 1982. On that date, Fulton Bank became a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulton, and the shareholders of Fulton Bank became shareholders of Fulton. Since that time, Fulton has acquired other banks (some of which have since been merged together), Fulton Bank adopted a national charter, and today Fulton owns the following community banks: FNB Bank, N.A., Fulton Bank, N.A., Fulton Bank of New Jersey, Lafayette Ambassador Bank, Swineford National Bank and The Columbia Bank.

In addition, Fulton has several other direct subsidiaries, including: Fulton Insurance Services Group, Inc. (which operates an insurance agency selling life insurance and related insurance products); Fulton Financial Realty Company (which owns or leases certain properties on which branch and operational facilities are located); Central Pennsylvania Financial Corp. (which owns, directly or indirectly, certain limited partnership interests, principally in low- to moderate-income and elderly housing projects); and FFC Management, Inc. (which holds certain investment securities and corporate-owned life insurance policies).

RSVP, Date, Time and Place of Meeting

The Annual Meeting will be held on Monday, May 16, 2016, at 10:00 a.m., at the Lancaster Marriott at Penn Square, 25 South Queen Street, Lancaster, Pennsylvania.

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. In order for Fulton to plan and prepare for the proper number of shareholders, if you plan on attending, please RSVP and confirm that you will attend by completing and returning the Annual Meeting Reservation Form enclosed. If you received a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, or if you requested proxy materials by email, please print and return the Annual Meeting Reservation Form posted at www.proxyvote.com if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting. Light refreshments will be available starting at 9:00 a.m., and the business meeting will start promptly at 10:00 a.m. Shareholders are encouraged to arrive early. Public parking is available in downtown Lancaster. For a list of parking locations, please consult the Lancaster Parking Authority website at www.lancasterparkingauthority.com, or consult the information in the Annual Meeting Invitation and Reservation Form. Each shareholder may be asked to present valid picture identification, such as a driver s license, and proof of share ownership, such as a copy of a brokerage statement or a copy of your ballot. Large bags, cameras, cell phones, recording devices and other electronic devices will not be permitted at the Annual Meeting, and individuals not complying with this request are subject to dismissal from the Annual Meeting. In the event of an adjournment, postponement or emergency that may change the Annual Meeting s time, date, or location, Fulton will make an announcement, issue a press release or post information at www.fult.com to notify shareholders as appropriate. The information on our website is not part of this Proxy Statement. References to Fulton s website in this Proxy Statement are intended to serve as inactive textual references only.

This Proxy Statement relates to the Annual Meeting of shareholders to be held on Monday, May 16, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. Attendance at the Annual Meeting will be limited to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 29, 2016 (the Record Date), their authorized representatives and guests of Fulton.

Shareholders Entitled to Vote and Attend Meeting

Only those shareholders of record as of the Record Date shall be entitled to receive notice of, attend and vote at the Annual Meeting.

Purpose of Meeting

Fulton shareholders will be asked to consider and vote upon the following matters at the Annual Meeting: (i) the election of eleven (11) director nominees to serve for one-year terms; (ii) the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers; (iii) the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as Fulton s independent auditor for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016; and (iv) such other business as may be properly brought before the Annual Meeting and any adjournments thereof.

Table of Contents

Solicitation of Proxies

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies, in the accompanying form, by the Board of Directors of Fulton for use at the Annual Meeting to be held at 10:00 a.m. on Monday, May 16, 2016, and any adjournments or postponements thereof. Fulton is making this solicitation and will pay the entire cost of preparing, assembling, printing, mailing and distributing the notices and these proxy materials and soliciting votes. In addition to the mailing of the notices and these proxy materials, the solicitation of proxies or votes may be made in person, by mail, telephone or by electronic communication by Fulton s directors, officers and employees, who will not receive any additional compensation for such solicitation activities. Fulton has engaged Laurel Hill Advisory Group, LLC, to aid in the solicitation of proxies in order to assure a sufficient return of votes on the proposals to be presented at the Annual Meeting. The fee for such services is estimated at \$7,000, plus reimbursement for reasonable research, distribution and mailing costs.

Arrangements will be made with brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for the forwarding of solicitation material to the beneficial owners of stock held of record by such persons, and Fulton will reimburse them for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection therewith.

Revocability and Voting of Proxies

The execution and return of the enclosed proxy card, or voting by another method, will not affect a shareholder s right to attend the Annual Meeting and to vote in person. A shareholder may revoke any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation by delivering written notice of revocation to the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary of Fulton, sending a new proxy card at any time before the shares are voted by the proxy at the Annual Meeting, or by voting by another method at any time before the applicable deadline for voting set forth on the proxy card. Unless revoked, any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation will be voted at the Annual Meeting, including any adjournment or postponement thereof, in accordance with the written instructions of the shareholder giving the proxy. In the absence of instructions, all proxies will be voted FOR the election of the eleven (11) director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement, FOR the approval of the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers, and FOR the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as Fulton s independent auditor for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. Although the Board of Directors knows of no other business to be presented, in the event that any other matters are properly brought before the Annual Meeting, any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors of Fulton as permitted by Rule 14a-4(c) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). If you are a registered shareholder of record who holds stock in certificates or book entry with Fulton s transfer agent and you do not cast your vote, no votes will be cast on your behalf on any of the items of business at the Annual Meeting.

Shares held for the account of shareholders who participate in the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and for the account of employees who participate in the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP) will be voted in accordance with the instructions of each shareholder as set forth in his or her proxy. If a shareholder who participates in these plans does not return a proxy, the shares held for the shareholder is account will not be voted.

Shares held for the account of employees of Fulton and its subsidiaries who participate in the Fulton Financial Common Stock Fund of the Fulton Financial Corporation 401(k) Retirement Plan (the 401(k) Plan), will be voted by Fulton Financial Advisors, a division of Fulton Bank, N.A., as plan trustee (Plan Trustee) in accordance with the instructions of each participant as set forth in the proxy card sent to the participant with respect to such shares. To allow sufficient time for the Plan Trustee to vote, participants voting instructions must be received by May 11, 2016.

Each participant in the 401(k) Plan (or the beneficiary of a deceased participant) is entitled to direct the Plan Trustee how to vote shares of common stock of Fulton which are allocated to his or her account under the 401(k) Plan on any matter on which other holders of Fulton s common stock are entitled to vote. If no direction is given, then the 401(k) Plan shares will not be voted by the Plan Trustee. The Plan Trustee has established procedures that are designed to safeguard the confidentiality of information about each Plan Participant s purchase, holding, sale and voting of the common stock. If a 401(k) Plan Participant has questions about these procedures or concerns about the confidentiality of this information, please contact the Retirement Plan Administrative Committee and direct the inquiry to Fulton Financial Corporation, Attn: RPAC Benefits, P.O. Box 4887, One Penn Square, Lancaster, PA 17604.

Table of Contents

Voting Shares Held in Street Name

If you hold shares in street name with a bank or broker, it is important that you instruct your bank or broker how to vote your shares if you want your shares to be voted on the election of directors (Proposal 1 of this Proxy Statement) and on the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers (Proposal 2 of this Proxy Statement). If you hold your shares in street name and you do not instruct your bank or broker how to vote your shares in the election of directors or any non-routine matters, such as Proposal 2 of this Proxy Statement, no votes will be cast on your behalf for the election of directors or Proposal 2. Your bank or broker will, however, continue to have discretion to vote any uninstructed shares on the ratification of the appointment of Fulton's independent auditor (Proposal 3 of this Proxy Statement) and other matters that your bank or broker considers routine. If you hold shares in street name with a bank or broker and you wish to vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting, you will need to obtain a legal proxy from your bank or broker authorizing you to vote the shares at the Annual Meeting.

Voting of Shares and Principal Holders Thereof

At the close of business on the Record Date, Fulton had 173,361,338 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. There is no other class of capital stock outstanding. As of the Record Date 2,468,604 shares of Fulton common stock were held by Fulton Financial Advisors (FFA), a division of Fulton Bank, N.A., as the Plan Trustee, or in a fiduciary capacity for fiduciary accounts. The shares held in this manner, in the aggregate, represent approximately 1.42% of the total shares outstanding. Shares that are held in the applicable plan are voted by the beneficiaries. Shares for which FFA serves as a co-fiduciary will be voted by the co-fiduciary, unless the co-fiduciary declines to accept voting responsibility, in which case, FFA will vote to abstain on all proposals. Shares for which FFA acts as custodian for a custodial account, are voted by the settlor of the revocable trust and the principal of the agency or custodial account unless the governing document provides for FFA to vote the shares, in which case FFA will vote to abstain on all proposals. Shares for which FFA is acting as sole trustee of an irrevocable trust or as guardian of the estate of a minor or an incompetent person are voted by FFA, and in such cases, FFA will vote to abstain on all proposals.

The holders of a majority of the outstanding common stock present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting constitute a quorum for the conduct of business. The judge of election will treat shares of Fulton common stock represented by a properly signed and returned proxy which casts a vote on any matter, other than a procedural matter, as present at the Annual Meeting for purposes of determining a quorum, without regard to whether the proxy is marked or designated as casting a vote or abstaining on a particular matter. Likewise, the judge of election will treat shares of common stock represented by broker non-votes as present for purposes of determining a quorum if such shares have been voted on any matter other than a procedural matter. ¹

Each share is entitled to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the shareholders. A majority of the votes cast at a meeting at which a quorum is present is required in order to approve any matter submitted to a vote of the shareholders, except for the election of directors, or in cases where the vote of a greater number of shares is required by law or under Fulton s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws.

In the case of the election of directors, the eleven (11) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast at the Annual Meeting shall be elected to the Board of Directors for terms of one (1) year. The affirmative vote of a majority of the common stock present or represented by proxy and voting at the Annual Meeting is required for approval of the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers and the ratification of Fulton s independent auditor.

¹ Broker non-votes are shares of common stock held in record name by brokers or nominees as to which (i) instructions have not been received from the beneficial owners or persons entitled to vote; and (ii) the broker or nominee does not have discretionary voting power to vote such shares on a particular proposal.

Table of Contents

Abstentions and broker non-votes may be counted as shares that are present at the Annual Meeting for determining the presence of a quorum if such shares are voted on at least one non-procedural matter at the meeting, but will not be counted as votes cast on the election of directors, the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers, or the ratification of Fulton s independent auditor. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the election of directors, the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution concerning executive compensation, or the ratification of Fulton s independent auditor, since only votes cast will be counted.

To the knowledge of Fulton, on the Record Date, no person or entity owned of record, or beneficially, more than 5% of the outstanding common stock of Fulton, except those listed on page 16 under Security Ownership of Directors, Nominees, Management and Certain Beneficial Owners.

Internet Availability of Proxy Materials

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting to be Held on May 16, 2016

In accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC), Fulton is advising its shareholders that Fulton is furnishing proxy materials (i.e., this Proxy Statement, 2015 Annual Report and proxy card) to some of Fulton's shareholders on the Internet at www.proxyvote.com rather than mailing paper copies of the materials to those shareholders. As a result, some shareholders will receive a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials and other shareholders will receive paper copies of this Proxy Statement, the 2015 Annual Report and proxy card. The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials contains instructions on how to access this Proxy Statement, the 2015 Annual Report and proxy card over the Internet, instructions on how to vote shares, as well as instructions on how to request a paper copy of our proxy materials, if shareholders so desire. Fulton believes electronic delivery should expedite the receipt of materials, significantly lower costs and help to conserve natural resources.

Whether shareholders receive the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or paper copies of the proxy materials, the Proxy Statement, the 2015 Annual Report, the proxy card, and any amendments to the foregoing materials that are required to be furnished to shareholders, are available for review online at http://materials.proxyvote.com/360271.

This Proxy Statement and our 2015 Annual Report also are available in the Investor Relations section of Fulton s website at www.fult.com. Shareholders may access this material by choosing the Investor Relations tab at the top of the page, and then SEC Filings from the items listed in the Investor Relations section.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote <u>FOR</u> the election of the eleven (11) director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement, <u>FOR</u> the approval of the non-binding Say-on-Pay resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers and <u>FOR</u> the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as Fulton s independent auditor for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.

Shareholder Proposals

Under SEC rules, shareholder proposals intended to be considered for inclusion in Fulton s Proxy Statement and form of proxy for the 2017 Annual Meeting must be received at the principal executive offices of Fulton at One Penn Square, Lancaster, Pennsylvania no later than December 5, 2016. In addition, any shareholder proposal not received at Fulton s principal executive offices by February 18, 2017, which is forty-five (45) calendar days before the one year anniversary of the date Fulton released the previous year s annual meeting Proxy Statement to shareholders, will be considered untimely and, if presented at the 2017 Annual Meeting, the proxy holders will be able to exercise discretionary authority in voting on any such proposal to the extent authorized by Rule 14a-4(c) under the Exchange Act. All shareholder proposals must comply with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act, as well as Fulton s Bylaws.

Generally, under applicable SEC rules, a shareholder may not submit more than one proposal, and the proposal, including any accompanying supporting statement, may not exceed 500 words. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a shareholder must have continuously held at least \$2,000 in market value of Fulton common stock for at least one year before the date the proposal is submitted. Any shareholder submitting a shareholder proposal to Fulton must also provide Fulton with a written statement verifying ownership of stock and confirming the shareholder s

Table of Contents

intention to continue to hold the stock through the date of the 2017 Annual Meeting. The shareholder, or a qualified representative, must attend the 2017 Annual Meeting in person to present the proposal. The shareholder must also continue to hold the applicable amount of Fulton common stock through the date of the 2017 Annual Meeting.

Contacting the Board of Directors

Any shareholder of Fulton who desires to contact the Board of Directors may do so by writing to: Board of Directors, Fulton Financial Corporation, P.O. Box 4887, One Penn Square, Lancaster, PA 17604. These written communications will be provided to the Chair of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors who will determine further distribution based on the nature of the information in the communication. For example, communications concerning accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters will be shared with the Chair of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Code of Conduct

Fulton s Code of Conduct (the Code of Conduct) governs the conduct of its directors, officers and employees. Fulton provides the Code of Conduct to each director, officer and employee when starting their position, and they are required to annually acknowledge their review of the Code of Conduct. The Code of Conduct was last updated in 2014, after a review by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Fulton s employees and directors are expected to recognize and avoid conflicts of interest situations in which personal interest or relationships interfere with, might interfere with, or appear to interfere with, their responsibilities to Fulton. A current copy of the Code of Conduct can be obtained, without cost, by writing to the Corporate Secretary at: Fulton Financial Corporation, P.O. Box 4887, One Penn Square, Lancaster, PA 17604. The current Code of Conduct, future amendments and any waivers are also posted and available on Fulton s website at www.fult.com.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Fulton has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the Governance Guidelines) that include guidelines and Fulton is policy regarding the following topics: (1) the size of the Board of Directors; (2) director qualifications; (3) majority vote standard; (4) service on other boards and director change in status; (5) meeting attendance and review of meeting materials; (6) director access to management and independent advisors; (7) designation of a Lead Director; (8) executive sessions; (9) Chief Executive Officer (CEO) evaluation and succession planning; (10) Board of Directors and committee evaluations; (11) stock ownership guidelines; (12) communications by interested parties; (13) Board of Directors and committee minutes; (14) Codes of Conduct; and (15) disclosure and update of the Governance Guidelines. On January 21, 2014, the Governance Guidelines were amended to add a majority vote standard for an uncontested election of directors. The Governance Guidelines were updated on June 17, 2014 to add the provision that Fulton encourages each member of the Board of Directors to attend outside education programs of relevance to their board service as one component of its corporate governance and general board education process, and again on July 21, 2015 to remove a provision expressing a general preference in the selection of directors for candidates working or living in the markets where Fulton operates, or in markets contiguous to those markets. A copy of the current Governance Guidelines can be obtained, without cost, by writing to the Corporate Secretary at: Fulton Financial Corporation, P.O. Box 4887, One Penn Square, Lancaster, PA 17604. The Governance Guidelines are also posted and available on Fulton's website at www.fult.com.

Table of Contents

SELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General Information

The Bylaws of Fulton provide that the Board of Directors shall consist of at least five (5) but not more than thirty-five (35) persons, and that the Board of Directors shall determine the number of directors. Pursuant to Fulton s Bylaws, as amended, all nominees elected to the Board of Directors are elected for one-year terms.

A majority of the Board of Directors may increase or decrease the number of directors between meetings of the shareholders. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors, whether due to an increase in the number of directors, resignation, retirement, death or any other reason may be filled by appointment by the remaining directors. Any director who is appointed to fill a vacancy shall hold office until the next Annual Meeting of the shareholders and until a successor is elected and shall have qualified.

Fulton s Bylaws limit the age of director nominees, and no person may be nominated for election as a director who will attain the age of seventy-two (72) years on or before the date of the Annual Meeting at which he or she is to be elected. In addition, Fulton has adopted a Voluntary Resignation Policy, last amended in January 2014, for directors that generally requires a director to tender his or her resignation when the director s effectiveness as a member of the Board of Directors may be substantially impaired. Circumstances that require a resignation to be submitted include, but are not limited to: (i) a director failing to attend at least 62.5% of meetings of the Board of Directors or its committees without a valid excuse; (ii) unless such an event is promptly cured to the satisfaction of Fulton, any extension of credit by any of Fulton s subsidiary banks for which the director or a related interest of the director is an obligor or guarantor is: a) classified by Fulton as nonaccrual, sixty (60) or more days past due, or restructured; b) assigned a risk rating of substandard or less; or c) not in material compliance with Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System s Regulation O (12 C.F.R. Part 215) (Regulation O); and (iii) a nominee for director does not receive a majority of the votes cast in an uncontested election for the Board of Directors. While the policy sets forth events which might cause a director to tender his or her resignation, it also directs Fulton s Board of Directors to consider carefully, on a case-by-case basis, whether or not Fulton should accept such a resignation.

Majority Vote Standard

In January 2014, Fulton s Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee recommended, and the Board of Directors adopted, a majority vote standard for uncontested director elections by revising the Governance Guidelines and the Voluntary Resignation Policy for directors. In an uncontested election for the Board of Directors at a Fulton annual meeting of shareholders, any nominee for director who does not receive a majority of the votes cast is required to promptly tender his or her resignation following certification of the shareholder vote. As further described in the Governance Guidelines, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall consider the resignation tendered and recommend to the Board of Directors whether to accept it.

Procedure for Shareholder Nominations

Section 3 of Article II of Fulton s Bylaws requires shareholder nominations of director candidates to be made in writing and delivered or mailed to the Chairman of the Board or the Corporate Secretary not less than the earlier of (a) one hundred twenty (120) days prior to any meeting of shareholders called for the election of directors or (b) the deadline for submitting shareholder proposals for inclusion in a Proxy Statement and form of proxy as calculated under Rule 14a-8(e) promulgated by the SEC under the Exchange Act. For the 2017 Annual Meeting this deadline date is December 5, 2016. Further, the notice to the Chairman of the Board or the Corporate Secretary of a shareholder nomination shall set forth: (i) the name and address of the shareholder who intends to make the nomination and a representation that the shareholder is a holder of record of stock of Fulton entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to be present in person or by proxy at such meeting to nominate the person or persons to be nominated; (ii) the name, age, business address and residence address of each nominee proposed in such notice; (iii) the principal occupation or employment of each such nominee; (iv) the number of shares of capital stock of Fulton that are beneficially owned by each such nominee; (v) a statement of qualifications of the proposed nominee and a letter from the nominee affirming that he or she will agree to serve as a director of Fulton, if elected by the shareholders; (vi) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the shareholder submitting the notice

Table of Contents

and each nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the shareholder; and (vii) such other information regarding each nominee proposed by the shareholder as would have been required to be included in the Proxy Statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the SEC had each nominee been nominated by or at the direction of the Board of Directors. The chairman of the meeting shall determine whether nominations have been made in accordance with the requirements of the Bylaws and, if the chairman determines that a nomination is defective, the nomination and any votes cast for the nominee shall be disregarded. Shareholder nominees are subject to the same standard of review as nominees of Fulton s Board of Directors or its Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Director Qualifications and Board Diversity

In considering any individual nominated for membership on the Board of Directors, including those nominated by a shareholder, Fulton considers a variety of factors, including whether the candidate is recommended by executive management, the individual s professional and personal qualifications, including business experience, education and community and charitable activities, the individual s familiarity with one or more of the communities in which the Corporation is located or is seeking to locate, and the diversity the individual may provide to the Board of Directors and its committees. Fulton does not have a separate written policy regarding how diversity is to be considered in the director nominating process. Generally, however, Fulton takes into account diversity in business experience, community service, skills, professional background and other qualifications, as well as diversity in race, national origin and gender, in considering individual candidates. Fulton s Governance Guidelines provide that Fulton s Board of Directors should be sufficient in size to achieve diversity in business experience, community service and other qualifications among non-employee directors while still facilitating substantive discussions in which each director can participate meaningfully. In 2004, the Board of Directors formed the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, whose members are independent in accordance with the NASDAQ listing standards. The charter for the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is posted and available on Fulton s website at www.fult.com. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for the Governance Guidelines and for recommending director nominees to the Board of Directors. A third party search firm was retained by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to assist Fulton in identifying and evaluating potential nominees during 2015, including Director Spair. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also considers nominees for director that are recommended by various persons or entities, including, but not limited to, non-management directors, Fulton s chief executive officer, other senior officers and third parties. Information on the experience, qualifications, attributes or skills of Fulton s director nominees is described under Director Nominee Biographical Information below.

Table of Contents

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS PROPOSAL ONE

General Information

For the 2016 Annual Meeting, the Board of Directors has fixed the number of directors at eleven (11). Pursuant to Fulton s Bylaws, as amended, nominees to the Board of Directors are elected for one-year terms. The Board of Directors has nominated the following eleven (11) people for election to the Board of Directors for a term of one year:

2016 Director Nominees

Lisa CrutchfieldDenise L. DevinePatrick J. FreerGeorge W. HodgesAlbert Morrison IIIJames R. Moxley IIIR. Scott Smith, Jr.Ronald H. SpairMark F. StraussErnest J. WatersE. Philip Wenger

Each of the above director nominees is presently a director of Fulton. Following the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Board of Directors approved the nomination of the above individuals. However, in the event that any of the foregoing 2016 director nominees are unable to accept nomination or election, any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation will be voted in favor of such other persons as the Board of Directors may recommend. The Board of Directors has no reason to believe that any of its director nominees will be unable to accept nomination or to serve as a director, if elected by a majority of the shares voted at the Annual Meeting.

Vote Required

The eleven (11) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast at the Annual Meeting shall be elected to the Board of Directors. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted as shares that are present at the Annual Meeting, but will not be counted as votes cast in the election of directors.

Under the Governance Guidelines, in an uncontested election of directors, any nominee for director who does not receive a majority of the votes cast is required to promptly tender his or her resignation following certification of the shareholder vote. As further described in the Governance Guidelines, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall consider the resignation tendered and recommend to the Board of Directors whether to accept it.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote <u>FOR</u> the election of the eleven (11) director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement to serve for one-year terms.

Information about Nominees, Directors and Independence Standards

Information concerning the experience, qualifications, attributes or skills of the eleven (11) persons nominated by Fulton for election to the Board of Directors at the 2016 Annual Meeting is set forth below, including whether they were determined by the Board of Directors to be independent for purposes of the NASDAQ listing standards.

Fulton is a NASDAQ listed company and follows the NASDAQ listing standards for Board of Directors and committee independence. The Board of Directors determined that ten (10) of Fulton's eleven (11) director nominees are independent, as defined in the applicable NASDAQ listing standards. Specifically, the Board of Directors found that Directors Crutchfield, Devine, Freer, Hodges, Morrison, Moxley, Smith, Spair, Strauss and Waters met the definition of independent director in the NASDAQ listing standards and that each of these directors is free of any relationships that would interfere with his or her individual exercise of independent judgment. In addition, members of the Audit Committee and the Human Resources Committee (the HR Committee) of the Board of Directors meet the requirements for independence under the NASDAQ listing standards, and the rules and regulations of the SEC for service on the Audit Committee or the HR Committee, as applicable. In reviewing director independence, the Board of Directors considered the relationships and other arrangements, if any, of each director. The other types of

relationships and transactions that were reviewed and considered are more fully described in Related Person Transactions on page 22.

9

Director Nominee Biographical Information

The following information regarding each director nominee s background, experience, qualifications, attributes or skills represents the information that led Fulton to conclude that these persons should be nominated to serve as a director of Fulton.

LISA CRUTCHFIELD (Independent Director)

Age: 53

Fulton Director since: 2014

Committees:

Executive - Member Nominating and Corporate Governance - Vice Chair

Risk - Chair

Ms. Crutchfield has been a Director of Unitil Corporation (NYSE:UTL) from 2012 to present. Since September of 2013, Ms. Crutchfield has led the CEO Council for Growth. Prior to her role at the CEO Council, she served as executive vice president and chief regulatory and compliance officer for National Grid USA from 2008 to 2011. In this role, Ms. Crutchfield also served as a non-independent director on the board of National Grid USA. She has also held executive roles with PECO Energy Company, TIAA-CREF and Duke Energy. In 1993, Crutchfield was appointed to serve as vice chairman of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. Ms. Crutchfield is a graduate of Yale University with a B.A. in economics and political science. She is also a graduate of the Harvard School of Business and holds a M.A. of Business Administration, with a distinction in finance.

Ms. Crutchfield brings more than 20 years of experience leading corporate teams and has extensive knowledge of the financial industry and business practices with expertise in risk mitigation, compliance and regulatory matters.

DENISE L. DEVINE (Independent Director)

Age: 60

Fulton Director since: 2012

Committees:

Audit Member and financial expert

Executive - Member Human Resources - Chair Ms. Devine is the founder and the Chief Executive Officer of FNB Holdings, LLC, a company dedicated to initiatives in the health and wellness space. Ms. Devine was also founder and the Chief Executive Officer of Nutripharm, Inc., a company that has generated a portfolio of composition and process patents to create innovative natural food, beverage, pharmaceutical and nutraceutical products that facilitate nutrition and lifelong health. She has also been dedicated to developing and marketing convenient and natural beverage and snack solutions for the healthy growth and development of children. Ms. Devine, a certified public accountant, also previously served as Chief Financial Officer for Energy Solutions International and in financial management positions for Campbell Soup Company. Ms. Devine has served as Chair of the Pennsylvania State Board of Accountancy and on the Board of the American Institute of CPAs. Ms. Devine was a member of the Board of Trustees of Villanova University from 2005 to 2015, where she was the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee. She has also served as a member of the Board of Trustees of Lourdes Health System since 2010.

Ms. Devine has substantial management, business and finance experience, which adds valuable outside experience to Fulton s Board of Directors and its committees. She received an MBA from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, an M.S. in Taxation from Villanova Law School, and a B.S in Accounting from Villanova University, where she graduated first in her class.

Table of Contents

PATRICK J. FREER (Independent Director)

Age: 66

Fulton Director since: 1996

Mr. Freer was a Director of Lebanon Valley Farmers Bank, formerly known as Farmers Trust Bank, from 1980 until it was combined with Fulton Bank in 2007. He is the President of Strickler Insurance Agency, Inc. (insurance broker) and a Certified Insurance Counselor.

Committees:

Executive - Member
Human Resources Vice Chair
Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee - Chair

Mr. Freer brings to the Fulton Board of Directors an extensive knowledge of insurance, investments, finance and risk management, as well as valuable knowledge of Fulton through his tenure of more than fifteen (15) years on its Board of Directors and as a bank director from 1980 to 2007. Mr. Freer has long been an active member in his community, helping with numerous capital campaigns and community projects. Mr. Freer has been a board member of the American Cancer Society, Lebanon County Economic Development Authority, Center of Lebanon Association and the Lebanon County Mental Health Association and has served as past president of the Lebanon Valley Sertoma Club and Lebanon County Christian Ministries.

GEORGE W. HODGES (Independent Director and Lead Director)